
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION IX 

75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105-3901 

Via Certified Mail: 
70083230000038629113 
Return Receipt Requested 

Charles Pires 
Chief Executive Officer 
Honolulu Marine, LLC 
123 Ahui Street 
Honolulu, HI 968 13 

Subject: Findings of Violation and Order for Compliance 
EPA Docket No. CWA-309(a)-09-015 

Dear Mr. Pires: 

On December 9,2008, and December 11,2008, representatives of the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) and the Hawaii State Department of Health (DOH), conducted a Clean 
Water Act compliance inspection at Honolulu Marine, LLCYs boat building and repair facility 
located at 123 Ahui Street, Honolulu, Hawaii (Facility). A copy of EPAYs inspection report is 
enclosed. 

Based on the inspection, EPA today issues the enclosed Findings of Violation and Order 
for Compliance requiring Honolulu Marine, LLC to take specific actions to bring the Facility 
into compliance with the Clean Water Act, including the following: 

1. Complete interim measures of structural and good housekeeping Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) in all areas of the Facility that have the potential to generate 
stormwater discharges associated with industrial activity; 

2. Revise the Storm Water Pollution Control Plan (SWPCP) for the Facility to fully 
comply with Hawaii Administrative Rules and the General Permit Authorizing 
Discharges of Stormwater Associated with Industrial Activities (General Permit). The 
SWPCP must fully describe all industrial activities, describe all associated BMPs, and 
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include inspection reports and monitoring records required by Hawaii Administrative 
Rules and the General Permit; 

3. Prepare and submit a monitoring program that fully complies with Hawaii 
Administrative Rules and the General Permit; and 

4. Complete 'several additional tasks identified in the Order, within the time specified. 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact Ann Murphy of my staff 
at (4 15) 972-3640. 

Sincerely yours, 

gcrgCbdh+d% 7 009 /-.& 
Alexis Strauss, Director 
Water Division 

Enclosures 

cc: Jamie Tanimoto, Hawaii DOH 
Michael Tsuji, Hawaii DOH 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 9 

75 Hawthorne Street 
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FINDINGS OF VIOLATION 
AND 

ORDER FOR COMPLIANCE 

Proceedings under Section 308(a) and 309(a) 
of the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 
U.S.C. Sections 13 18(a), and 13 19(a) 

STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

The following Findings of Violation are made and Order for Compliance issued pursuant 
to the authority vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
by Sections 308(a) and 309(a)(3), (a)(4), and (a)(5)(A) of the Clean Water Act, as amended (the 
Act or CWA), 33 U.S.C. $ 8  1318(a), and 1319(a)(3), (a)(4), and (a)(5)(A). This authority has 
been delegated to the Regional Administrator of EPA, Region 9, and re-delegated by the 
Regional Administrator to the Director of the Water Division of EPA, Region 9. Notice of this 
action has been given to the State of Hawaii. 

FINDINGS OF VIOLATION 

1. Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5  131 l(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants into, 
navigable waters of the United States, except in compliance with the Act, including 
Section 402, 33 U.S.C. 5  1342. 

2. Section 402 of the Act, 33 U. S.C. 5  1342, establishes the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) program. Under Section 402,33 U.S.C. 5  1342, EPA and 
states with EPA-approved NPDES programs are authorized to issue permits governing 
the discharge of pollutants from regulated sources. 

3. Section 402(p) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5  1342(p), and EPA's implementing regulations at 
40 CFR 5  122.26, require NPDES pennit authorization for discharges of storm water 
associated with industrial activity. Facilities engaged in industrial activity, as defined by 
40 CFR 5 122.26(b)(14), must obtain NPDES permit authorization if they discharge or 



propose to discharge storm water into waters of the United States. Pursuant to 40 CFR 
$$  122,26(a)(l)(ii) and 122.26(c), dischargers of storm water associated with industrial 
activity are required to apply for an individual permit or to seek coverage under a 
promulgated storm water general permit. 

Boat building and repair, Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) 3732, falls under SIC 
Group 373 and, pursuant to 40 CFR 5 122.26 (b)(l4)(ii), is an industrial activity subject 
to the discharge and permitting requirements under Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 
5 1342. 1 

Section 308(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5 1318(a), and its implementing regulations 
authorize EPA to, inter alia, require the owner or operator of any point source to establish 
records, make reports, or submit other reasonably required information, including 
individual and general NPDES permit applications. 

The State of Hawaii (State) has an EPA-approved NPDES program, and issues permits, 
including storm water permits, through its Department of Health (DOH). On October 25, 
2002, DOH adopted the NPDES General Permit Authorizing Discharges of Storm Water 
Associated with Industrial Activities, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR) Chapter 1 1 - 
55, Appendix B (General Permit), which became effective on November 7,2002. The 
General Permit that is currently effective is dated October 22,2007, and expires on 
October 21,2012. 

All facility operators seeking coverage under the General Permit must submit a notice of 
intent to comply (NOI) to DOH thirty days prior to commencing industrial operations or 
thirty days prior to the expiration of existing permit coverage. (General Permit 5 4(a)). 
Industrial storm water dischargers that do not submit an NO1 must submit an application 
for an individual NPDES permit. (HAR 8 1 1 -55-04(a)). 

8. The General Permit requires facility operators to develop and implement a storm water 
pollution control plan (SWPCP). (General Permit 5 6(a)). The purpose of the SWPCP is 
to identify sources of industrial storm water pollution and to identify and implement site- 
specific best management practices (BMPs) to control discharges. 

9. The SWPCP must include, inter alia, (a) a facility description; (b) a site map that 
identifies drainage areas and outfalls, areas of outdoor storage and industrial activity, 
sampling locations, and the nearest receiving water; (c) a pollution control strategy that 
considers the use of containment structures, appropriate facility covering, and other 
BMPs to minimize the discharge of pollutants; and (d) a storm water monitoring plan. 
(General Permit 5 6(a)). 

10. The storm water monitoring plan must provide the rationale for the sampling locations 
selected by the permittee; the sample collection methodologies to be used; the parameters 
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to be monitored; the methods for calculating storm water flow volume; and the 
procedures used to inspect receiving waters, storm water runoff, and facility control 
structures and BMPs. (General Permit 5  6(a)(7)). 

Discharges regulated under the General Permit must comply with the applicable sections 
of the State's water quality standards, found in HAR Chapter 11-54, as well as the 
applicable sections of HAR Chapter 11-55, which include but are not limited to, the 
applicable effluent standards and limitations in HAR Section 1 1-55- 19, the monitoring 
requirements in HAR Section 55-1 1-28, and the sampling requirements in HAR Section 
55- 1 1-3 1. (HAR 5  1 1-55.34.04 and General Permit 5  8(b)). Discharges regulated under 
the General Permit must also comply with federal effluent limitations and best 
management practices. (HAR 5  1 1-55-34.07). 

The General Permit requires permittees to monitor all storm water outfalls and collect 
samples during "representative storm events." (General Permit 5  8(a)). In addition to 
sampling storm water runoff, permittees must also conduct semi-annual facility 
inspections to ensure that the SWPCP is effective and must inspect the receiving waters 
as well as the facility's storm water control measures and BMPs to detect and prevent 
violations of water quality criteria. (General Permit $ 5  6(a)(9)(c), 8(b)(2), and 8(c)). 

Pursuant to the General Permit's record keeping requirements, permittees must record 
sampling results and certain storm data as well as information gathered during routine 
facility inspections. (General Permit $ 8  6(a)(9)(c) and 10(a)). All records and data 
collected during monitoring activities must be maintained for at least five years and must 
be available at the facility for review, and the storm water sampling results must be 
submitted to DOH annually. (General Permit $ 5  13 and 10(a)). 

Facilities subject to reporting requirement for EPCRA Section 3 13 "water priority 
chemicals" are subject to additional conditions under the General Permit. (General 
Permit 5  7). 

Honolulu Marine, LLC, (Respondent or Honolulu Marine) operates a facility located at 
123 Ahui Street in Honolulu, Hawaii (Facility). Respondent has operated the Facility 

since at least July, 1998. The Facility is primarily engaged in boat building and repair, an 
industrial activity that is classified under SIC 3732. 

Honolulu Marine is a limited liability company registered in Hawaii, and is thus a 
"person" under CWA Section 502(5), 33 U.S.C. 5  1362(5). 

Honolulu Marine filed for coverage under the Hawaii General Permit on or around July, 
1998. DOH assigned Notice of General Permit Coverage (NGPC) No. HIR20A156 to 
Honolulu Marine. The NGPC expired in November 2007. On October 19,2007 
Honolulu Marine submitted an NO1 for renewal and was granted an administrative 
extension pending the renewal. 
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18. Rainfall events that exceed 0.1 inches are generally sufficient to generate storm water 
runoff at the Facility. Data from the Honolulu International Airport rain gauge, which is 
located approximately 6 miles from the Facility, indicate there were 183 days with more 
than 0.1 inches of rainfall at the Facility between June 1,2004 and June 1,2009. 

19. Storm water runoff discharges from the Facility into Kewalo Basin through four outfalls. 
The outfalls are "point sources" as defined by Section 502(14) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 

5 1362(14). 

20. The storm water discharged from the Facility contains "pollutants," including industrial 
waste, as defined by Section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5 1362(6), and is storm water 
discharge associated with industrial activity as defined by EPA regulations in 40 CFR 
5 122.26(b)(14). 

21. Kewalo Basin, is a "navigable water" within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the Act, 33 
U.S.C. 5 1362(7), and a "water of the United States" as defined by EPA regulations in 40 
CFR 5 122.2. 

22. On December 9,2008, representatives of EPA and DOH inspected the Facility to 
evaluate compliance with the General Permit. On December 11,2008, representatives of 
EPA returned to the Facility to conduct a follow-up inspection. The inspection report is 
attached and incorporated by reference, and contains evidence that Respondent: 

a. Failed to develop and implement an adequate SWPCP, as required by the General 
Permit (General Permit 5 5 4(b)(5)), including; 
1. Failed to identify facility personnel responsible for spill prevention and 

response implementation, as required by Section 6(a)(4) of the General 
Permit. 

o. Failed to implement adequate BMPs at the Facility as required by the General 
Permit (General Permit 5 6(a)(3)), including: 
1. Failed to eliminate catch basin discharge into Kewalo Basin from outfall D3; 
2. Failed to implement cover and containment BMPs at the winch location to 

prevent discharge of pollutants to Kewalo Basin; 
3. Failed to implement adequate BMPs to cover and contain stored barrels 

outside of the covered areas; 
4. Failed to implement Good Housekeeping in boat repair area to prevent 

discharge of pollutants to Kewalo Basin; and 
5. Failed to connect a sink in the facility to the sanitary sewer to prevent 

discharge from the sink drain to Kewalo Basin. 
c. Failed to comply with Monitoring Program and Reporting Requirements as 

required by the General Permit (General Permit 5 8(a)), including: 
1. Failed to conduct sampling or maintain records of sampling activities at the 

Facility's four outfalls (Dl, D2, D3 and D4) as required by Section 8(a)(2). 
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2. Failed to conduct inspections or maintain records of inspections, of receiving 
waters, stormwater runoff, BMPs and control measures as required by Section 
8(b) of the General Permit. 

3. Failed to maintain records of annual employee training for spill cleanup and 
control as required by Section 6(a)(8). 

Based on the foregoing, EPA has determined that Respondent has violated the CWA as 
follows: 
a. Respondent's failure to develop and implement an adequate SWPCP at the Facility 

violated Section 4(b)(5) of the General Permit, which was issued pursuant to Section 
402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5  1342, and thus violated Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 
U.S.C. 5  1311(a); 

b. Respondent's failure to develop and implement adequate BMPs at the Facility 
violated Section 6(a)(3) of the General Permit, which was issued pursuant to Section 
402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5  1342, and thus violated Section 30 1 (a) of the Act, 33 
U.S.C. 5  131 l(a); and 

c. Respondent's failure to implement an adequate monitoring program while engaged in 
industrial activity at the Facility violated Section 8(a) of the General Permit, which 
was issued pursuant to Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, and thus violated 
Section 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 13 1 l(a). 

ORDER FOR COMPLIANCE 

Considering the foregoing Findings of Violation and the potential environmental and 
human health effects of the violations, EPA has determined that compliance in accordance with 
the following requirements is reasonable. Pursuant to the authority of Sections 308 and 309 of 
the Act, 33 U.S.C. $5  13 18 and 1319, it is hereby ordered that Respondent comply with the 
following requirements: 

Within 30 days of receipt of this Order, Respondent shall implement the following 
interim control measures (Interim Measures) in all areas of the Facility that have the 
potential to generate storm water discharge associated with industrial activity, as the term 
is defined at 40 CFR 5  122.26(b)(14): 

a. Implement structural BMPs to address discharges at the catch basin and outfall 
D3; 

b. Implement structural and good housekeeping BMPs to cover and contain 
pollutants at the winch; 

c. Implement structural and good housekeeping BMPs to cover and contain stored 
barrels in the yard; 

d. Implement good housekeeping practices to prevent runoff hom the boat repair 
area; 

e. Connect the sink that discharges directly onto the dock to the sanitary sewer; and 
f. Clean all oily stains on the ground in exposed areas of the Facility. 
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5.  Within 30 days of receipt of this Order - upon completion of the Interim Measures - 
Respondent shall submit a notice of completion to EPA that shall include a list of the 
measures taken, the date of completion for each measure, the person(s) responsible for 
overseeing each measure, photographs of each completed measure, and copies of 
documents associated with the completion of the measures, such as contracts, permits, 
and manifests. 

26. In performing the Interim Measures, care shall be taken to ensure they do not cause or 
contribute to any runoff to waters of the United States, the municipal storm drains, or the 
municipal sewer systems. Care shall also be taken to ensure compliance with all 
applicable federal, state, and local waste storage and disposal requirements. 

27. Immediately upon receipt of this Order, Honolulu Marine shall inspect all areas of the 
Facility that have the potential to generate storm water discharge associated with 
industrial activity, as the term is defined at 40 CFR 5 122.26(b)(14), to ensure that there 
are no pollutant sources that could cause or contribute to unauthorized discharges to any 
waters of the United States and to determine the condition and effectiveness of the 
Facility's BMPs. Honolulu Marine shall conduct an inspection after each rainfall event 
and, at least once per week during operating hours, for 30 days, and shall keep an 
inspection log for each inspection. The inspection log shall include the following: 

a. The date and time of the inspection; 
b. The name of the person conducting the inspection; 
c. A checklist of areas inspected; 
d. Observations of any industrial activity or potential pollution source, including any 

spill, leakage, or storage of material, that could drain into the storm water 
collection system or contribute to unpermitted discharges; and 

e. List all control measures implemented to address potential pollutant sources at the 
Facility and the person performing the control measures. 

28. Within 7 days of the receipt of this Order, Respondent shall submit a copy of the SWPCP 
currently in use at the Facility. This must include, among other requirements, all of 
Respondent's inspection and monitoring records for the Facility since it renewed its 
coverage under the General Permit in October 2007. If inspection and monitoring 
records do not exist, please explain why. 

29. Within 45 days of the receipt of this Order, Respondent shall submit inspection logs for 
the inspections conducted pursuant to Paragraph 27 of this Order. 

30. . Within 45 days of receipt of this Order, Respondent shall submit to EPA: 
a. A description of the Facility's history, including its length of operation and the 

identity of its owner(s) and operator(s) since it began operation, and all 
supporting documents; 
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b. All documents, including internal communications, consultant reports, and 
communications with any federal, state or local regulatory agencies, relating to 
any and all discharges or spills by the Facility since June 1,2004; 

c. All documents, (including internal communications, design and construction 
documents, location maps, operating instructions, cleaning practices, contracts, 
invoices for repair, cleaning and disposal records, drawings, correspondence, 
maintenance records, and consultant reports) relating to any and all drains, catch 
basins, sumps, and surface water collection systems located at the Facility; 

d. All documentation of off site transfers of waste oil and used oil from the Facility. 
e. All documents, including internal communications, consultant reports, and 

communications with any regulatory agencies, concerning the General Permit; 
f. Provide a list of all facilities owned or operated by Honolulu Marine, LLC. 

3 1. Within 60 days of receipt of this Order, Respondent shall submit to EPA a revised 
SWPCP and monitoring program for the Facility that incorporates employee training and 
spill cleanup procedures, identifies personnel responsible for spill prevention and 
response, incorporates all of the changes that have been made in response to this Order, 
and fully complies with the General Permit. 

32. EPA and/or DOH may require Respondent to make modifications to the SWPCP and/or 
the monitoring program. Unless otherwise specified by EPA or DOH, Respondent shall, 
within 15 days of receipt of comments from EPA or DOH, incorporate the modifications 
into the SWPCP and monitoring program and implement the modifications. 

33. Within 60 days Respondent shall submit: 
a. Detailed accounting of costs incurred to update the SWPCP pursuant to Paragraph 

3 1 of this Order; 
b. Detailed cost estimates, including estimated capital, one-time, and annual costs, 

for implementing the updated SWPCP; 
c. Detailed accounting of costs incurred to comply with Interim Measures required 

by the Order; 
d. Detailed accounting of costs incurred to develop the monitoring required under 

the General Permit; 
e. Detailed cost estimates, including estimated capital, one-time, and annual costs 

. for implementing the monitoring program; and 
f. All documents, including without limitation, internal communications, consultant 

reports, and communications with any regulatory agencies, concerning the 
General Permit. 

34. All reports submitted pursuant to this Order must be signed by a principal executive 
officer, ranking elected official, or duly authorized representative of Respondent (as 
specified by 40 CFR 5 122.22 (b)(2)) and shall include the following statement: 
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"I certify under the penalty of law that this document and all 
attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in 
accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 
personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. 
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the 
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, I certify that the information submitted is, to the best 
of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am 
aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for 
knowing violations." 

All submissions requested by this Order shall be mailed to the following address: 

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 9 
Clean Water Act Compliance Office WTR-7 
75 Hawthorne Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

Attention: Ann Murphy, Enforcement Officer 
All telephone inquiries should be made to Ann Murphy at (415) 972-3640. 

Respondent shall send a copy of all submissions required under this Order to: 

Hawaii Department of Health 
Clean Water Branch 
919 Ala Moana Blvd. Room 301 
Honolulu, HI 968 14-4920 

Attention: Jamie Tanimoto, Environmental Health Specialist, Hawaii DOH 
Michael Tsuji, Supervisor, Enforcement Section, Hawaii DOH 

This Order shall be binding upon Respondent and Respondent's officers, directors, 
agents, employees, heirs, successors, and assigns. 

This Order is not a permit under the CWA, and does not waive or modifl Respondent's 
obligation and responsibility to ascertain and comply with all applicable federal, state, or 
local laws, regulations, ordinances, permits, or licenses. 

This Order is not to be deemed an election by EPA to forgo any remedies available to it 
under the law, including without limitation, any administrative, civil, or criminal action 
to seek penalties, fines, or other appropriate relief under the Act. EPA reserves all rights 
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and remedies, legal and equitable, available to enforce any violations cited in this Order 
and to enforce this Order. 

Requests for information contained within this Order are not subject to review by the 
Office of Management and Budget under the Paperwork Reduction Act because it is not a 
"collection of information" within the meaning of 44 U.S.C. 5 3502(3). It is directed to 
fewer than ten persons and is an exempt investigation under 44 U.S.C. § 3518(c)(1) and 5 
CFR 5 1320.4(a)(2). 

Respondents may not withhold from EPA any information on the grounds that it is 
confidential business information. However, EPA has promulgated, under 40 CFR Part 
2, Subpart By regulations to protect confidential business information it receives. A 
legally supportable claim of business confidentiality may be asserted in the manner 
specified by 40 CFR 2.203(b) for all or part of the information requested by EPA. EPA 
will disclose business information covered by such claim only as authorized under 40 
CFR Part 2, Subpart B. If no claim of confidentiality accompanies the information at the 
time EPA receives it, EPA may make it available to the public without further notice. 

Section 309(a), (b), (d) and (g) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 8 1319(a),(b), (d) and (g), provides 
administrative andlor judicial relief for failure to comply with the CWA. In addition 
Section 309(c) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 5 1319(c), provides criminal sanctions for negligent 
or knowing violations of the CWA and for knowingly making false statements. 

This Order shall become effective upon the date of receipt by the Respondent. 

Alexis Strauss, Director 
Water Division 

2 6 k .  Zsg 3 
Date 
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